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LADEE Propulsion System; Questions and Answers-Set 1
1. Are the OCS thruster heat shield and the tank, valve, and thruster brackets included in the GFE structure as was the baseline during the Phase 1 study?
Yes. The OCS thruster heat shield and tank, valve, and thruster brackets are GFE.
2. Please provide a copy of the Applicable Document [1] Interface Drawing of Propulsion System Structure ACB-L-080A-M103_REV_pre_070109.

This drawing is currently under revision and will be provided as available.
3. Please provide a copy of the Applicable Document [2] STEP file with the CAD Model of the Propulsion System Structure, or if it is unchanged from the Phase 1 Study version, please so advise.

The file will be uploaded separately.  Note that components can be mounted in cutouts in the cruciform web part of the propulsion system structure. NASA will evaluate web cutout configurations on a case-by-case basis. For large web cutouts there should be a 4 inch minimum edge distance to the outside of web and 3 inch minimum edge distance to other edges.  A maximum of 30% of the panel area (from a 19.2” X 27” flat panel) can be removed. These are recommendations and deviations can be considered. Plumbing cutouts should be kept away from the outside web areas.
4. Please provide the LADEE-tailored version of AFSPC Manual 91-710 referred to in SOW Requirements section 16, if available. If not available, please advise as to any currently anticipated tailoring that could materially impact the LADEE Propulsion System design.

Tailoring of AFSPC Manual 91-710 for LADEE is still in progress. At the present time, NASA foresees no tailoring which could materially impact the LADEE propulsion system design. 

5. Should we assume direct exposure to launch environments or will a flowdown be provided with some adjustments based on coupling through the spacecraft to the propulsion system. 

Generation of a flowdown of the launch environment is still in progress. For purposes of responding to the RFP, vendors should assume direct exposure to launch environment. 
6. The absence of a specific applicable requirements document for Mission Assurance implies that the Propulsion System supplier can use its own standard Mission Assuance Plan. Is that assumption correct?

Yes. The vendor can use its own Mission Assurance Plan. NASA requests that it receive copies of reports of any significant deviations or nonconformances. If NASA requests that the vendor take additional action beyond its own Mission Assurance Plan in response to a deviation or nonconformance, this would be considered a change to be negotiated between NASA and the vendor.

7. The Past Performance (Volume II) instructions require up to 6 letters of commendation and/or recommendation. Are these letters included in the 20-page limit for Volume II?

No. Letters of commendation/recommendation do not count against the 20-page limit for Volume II.

8. Can it be assumed that the structure provided will include any necessary alignment provisions and that final alignments will not take place at the propulsion vendor’s facility?

The structure provided by NASA will include all necessary alignment provisions. It will not be necessary for final alignment to take place at the vendor’s facility. 

9. Can it be assumed that the shipping container the structure is received in, will also be acceptable (and compatible) to return the completed module?

Yes. The propulsion structure shipping container will be designed so as to accommodate the assembled propulsion system.

10. Is it valid to assume component level build up in a class 10,000 environment and then system assembly and test in a class 100,000 environment with a final propulsion module clean up in a class 10,000 environment? 

Yes. This procedure is acceptable to NASA. 

11. Is the thermal hardware associated with the propulsion subsystem to be counted against the propulsion subsystem allocated mass of 160kg?

No. NASA carries the thermal hardware mass for the propulsion subsystem as part of the LADEE thermal subsystem. However, vendors should address thermal hardware mass requirements in their proposals. NASA assumes that the propulsion subsystem thermal requirements can be met with multi-layer insulation (MLI) and heaters, and that no mass-intensive components (e.g. heat pipes) will be required. 

12. The cover letter, including various contract attachments, is identified as part of Vol 1 (per L.7.b.2). However in L.7.c it states only technical information shall be included in Vol 1. Please clarify the instructions?

The cover letter and associated information is considered technical information and should be included in volume 1 however it does not count against the page limitations of volume 1.
13.  Could NASA provide clarification on the LADEE cost volume instructions regarding the level of detail and supporting information expected to be submitted as part of our fixed price proposal response?
The cost volume should include a breakdown of the cost of major components, labor costs by major category, and subcontract costs.
